
           
CITY OF TEXAS CITY

REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2024 - 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM -  CITY HALL

 1801 9th Ave. N.
Texas City, TX  77590

PLEASE NOTE: Public comments and matters from the floor are generally limited to 3 minutes in length.
If you would like to request to speak, please do so in advance of the meeting by filling out a Request To
Address Commission form. All in attendance are required to remove hats and/or sunglasses (dark
glasses) during meetings and to also silence all cell phones and electronic devices.
 

           
(1) ROLL CALL   
 

(2) INVOCATION   
 

(3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

(4) PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS   
 

(a) Service Awards    
Carol Hill De Santos Library 11/03/2024 10 years
Saungala Montgomery Police 11/03/2024 10 years
Arthur Withers Public Works 11/02/2009 15 years
Calvin Bremer Waste Water Treatment

Plant
11/29/2004 20 years

 
(b) Certificate of Recognition Presented to Hire Up Texas   

 

(5) REPORTS   
 

(a) Financial Quarterly Report (Finance)
 

(b) Emergency Management Report (Emergency Management)
 

(c) Utilities Department Letter to Residents and Customers Concerning Water Service Lines
 
(6) PUBLIC HEARING   



 

(a) Public Hearing on the adoption of an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 13-13, which
Amended Ordinance No. 04-42 to nominate Union Carbide Corporation to participate in
the Texas Enterprise Zone Program.

  

 

(7) ADDRESS ITEMS FROM PUBLIC HEARING   
 

(a) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-28, amending the City’s existing
ordinances pertaining to Texas Enterprise Zones and nominating a specific Union
Carbide Corporation project as an enterprise project. (Economic Development)

 
(8) PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 

(9) CONSENT AGENDA   
 

(a) Approve City Commission Minutes for the November 6, 2024 meeting. (City Secretary)
 

(b) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-157, authorizing the purchase of 476
Visa gift cards in the amount of $75.00 each to be given to the City employees (full-time
and part-time) as an incentive for continued outstanding customer service and
performance. (Human Resources)

 
(c) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-158, authorizing the renewal and

payment of the semi-annual Service Agreement for the support and maintenance of the
Public Safety Software package from CentralSquare. (Police)

 
(d) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-159, authorizing a purchase

through Generosity Services Inc (Choice Partners Contract #23/016MR-17) for
replacement of the Texas City Police Department's hallway tile, wall covering, and carpet
throughout the building. (Police)

 
(e) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-160, authorizing the purchase

of furniture for the Police Department from Office Furniture Connection through PCA
Contract #OD-389-23. (Police)

 
(f) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-161, authorizing a purchase

through Buy Board Contract No. 706-23 of one Toro Greenmaster 3250-D Tee Mower for
the Bayou Golf Course to replace the 2013 model. (Rec & Tour)

 
(10) REGULAR ITEMS   
 

(a) Consider and take action on the third reading and final reading of Ordinance No.
2024-26, regarding recommended speed zones for FM 646, as recommended by TxDOT
based on an engineering and traffic investigation. (City Engineer)



 
(b) Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2024-27, amending

the Texas City Code of Ordinance Title III entitled "Administration," Chapter 37, adding
Section 16 - Signatures and seals: electronic, digital, and facsimile. (City Secretary)

 
(c) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-162, authorizing the removal and

replacement of three existing roof-top A/C units at both the Sanders-Vincent and Carver
Centers by Gowan Mechanical Inc. through Choice Partners Contract 22/049MF-10.
(Rec & Tour/ Public Works)

 
(d) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-163, authorizing the execution of an

Engineering Agreement with ARKK Engineer, LLC. for the Water Line Replacement
Project - Phase 22. (Public Works)

 
(e) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-164, authorizing the execution of an

Engineering Service Agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC. for the Sanitary Sewer
Rehabilitation Project - Phase 24. (Public Works)

 
(f) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-165, authorizing the Mayor, or his

designee, to enter into a contract with Blaze Construction Services, LLC for the Lago
Mar 24" Force Main Phase2 and Lago Mar East 16" Force Main Phase 2B project.
(Public Works)

 
(g) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-166, to award Bid No. 2025-466 Sheet

Pile Replacement Project at Pump Stations A & B. (Public Works)
 
(11) EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION   
 

(a) Convene for Executive (Closed) Session pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act,
Chapter 551, Texas Government Code to discuss the following:
§551.071 Consultation with City Attorney
§551.072 Deliberation Regarding Real Property
§551.074 Personnel Matters

  

 

(12) RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION   
 

(a) Consideration and possible action deriving from the Executive (Closed) Session.   
 

(13) COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS   
 

(14) MAYOR'S COMMENTS   
 

(15) ADJOURNMENT   
 



NOTICE OF ANY SUBJECT APPEARING ON THIS AGENDA REGARDLESS OF HOW THE MATTER
IS STATED MAY BE ACTED UPON BY THE CITY COMMISSION.
NOTICE: The City of Texas City will furnish free transportation to handicapped individuals via a 4-door
sedan for anyone wishing to attend the City Commission meetings.  Call 948-3111, City Secretary's
Office before noon on Monday preceding the meeting to make arrangements.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS NOTICE OF MEETING WAS
POSTED ON THE BULLETIN BOARDS AT CITY HALL, 1801 9TH AVENUE NORTH, TEXAS CITY,
TEXAS, AT A PLACE CONVENIENT AND READILY ACCESSIBLE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND
ON THE CITY'S WEBSITE ON NOVEMBER 15, 2024, PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M. AND REMAINED SO
POSTED CONTINUOUSLY FOR AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRECEDING THE SCHEDULED TIME OF
SAID MEETING.

______________________
RHOMARI LEIGH
CITY SECRETARY



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (a)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
November 2024 Service Awards
Submitted For: Jennifer Price, Human Resources 
Submitted By: Susan Sensat, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Service Awards      
Carol Hill De Santos Library 11/03/2024 10 years
Saungala
Montgomery Police 11/03/2024 10 years

Arthur Withers Public Works 11/02/2009 15 years

Calvin Bremer Waste Water Treatment
Plant 11/29/2004 20 years

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Service Award(s) for the following individual(s) for the month of November is based on their
years of service with the City.

RECOMMENDATION
Human Resources recommend approval of the November service awards.

Fiscal Impact



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (5) (a)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Submitted By: Renee Edgar, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Financial Quarterly Report (Finance)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report 



     
 MUNICIPAL INVESTMENTS ARE REGULATED BY GOVERNMENT CODE: 

CHAPTER 2256 – PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT 

 TYPES OF INVESMENTS – FIXED INCOME

 INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

 PRESERVATION AND SAFETY OF PRINCIPAL
 LIQUIDITY
 YIELD

 INVESTMENT POLICY 

 QUARTERLY REPORTING 

TEXAS CITY INVESTMENT POLICY


































































































































































image1.jpeg

erad 6‘2{

§ EST. 1911






image2.jpeg

EST. 1911







image3.jpeg

) Teras Clty

i EST. 1911







image4.jpeg







image5.jpeg

i EST. 1911







image6.jpeg







image7.jpeg







image8.jpeg







image9.jpeg

77






image10.jpeg

EST. 1911







image11.jpeg

i EST. 1911






image12.jpeg

747







image13.jpeg







image14.jpeg

£ )
* *
2

’ i EST. 1911







image15.jpeg







image16.jpeg















INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO REPORT

BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE

INVESTMENTS-BEG. OF PERIOD 112,621,316$     112,074,589$     
INVESTMENT PURCHASES/ADDITIONS/TRANSFERS IN 28,913,000 28,913,000
INVESTMENT MATURITIES/DELETIONS/TRANSFERS OUT (28,811,147) (28,811,147)
AMORTIZATION(PREMIUM/DISCOUNT) -                               -                               
CHANGE IN FAIR MARKET VALUE -                               465,643                
INVESTMENTS-END OF PERIOD 112,723,168$     112,642,085$     

Interest received quarter ending 09-30-24 175,013$              175,013$              

INVESTMENTS-END OF PERIOD PLUS INTEREST 112,898,182$     112,817,098$     


































































































































































image1.jpeg

erad 6‘2{

§ EST. 1911






image2.jpeg

EST. 1911







image3.jpeg

) Teras Clty

i EST. 1911







image4.jpeg







image5.jpeg

i EST. 1911







image6.jpeg







image7.jpeg







image8.jpeg







image9.jpeg

77






image10.jpeg

EST. 1911







image11.jpeg

i EST. 1911






image12.jpeg

747







image13.jpeg







image14.jpeg

£ )
* *
2

’ i EST. 1911







image15.jpeg







image16.jpeg















       AMOUNT
 HILLTOP SECURITIES (STUART FORD)

o FIXED INCOME SECURITIES   $ 17,501,483
o CASH/MONEY MARKET FUNDS      20,082,418

 OSAIC INSTITUTIONS (PAUL GROVER)
o FIXED INCOME SECURITIES      37,756,609
o CASH/MONEY MARKET FUNDS      34,494,090

 TEXAS FIRST BANK (DEPOSITORY)      
o CASH/MONEY MARKET FUNDS                      2,982,498 

 TOTAL PORTFOLIO AS OF SEP 30, 2024   $112,817,098

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO BY INSTITUTIONS


































































































































































image1.jpeg

erad 6‘2{

§ EST. 1911






image2.jpeg

EST. 1911







image3.jpeg

) Teras Clty

i EST. 1911







image4.jpeg







image5.jpeg

i EST. 1911







image6.jpeg







image7.jpeg







image8.jpeg







image9.jpeg

77






image10.jpeg

EST. 1911







image11.jpeg

i EST. 1911






image12.jpeg

747







image13.jpeg







image14.jpeg

£ )
* *
2

’ i EST. 1911







image15.jpeg







image16.jpeg















INVESTMENT COMPOSITION @ SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Investment Type Amount
Bank Deposits 42,505,451$           
Treasury Securities 22,804,069$           
Agency Securities -$                           
Mutual Funds 15,053,555$           
Bonds 32,454,023$           
Total Investments 112,817,098$         


































































































































































image1.jpeg

erad 6‘2{

§ EST. 1911






image2.jpeg

EST. 1911







image3.jpeg

) Teras Clty

i EST. 1911







image4.jpeg







image5.jpeg

i EST. 1911







image6.jpeg







image7.jpeg







image8.jpeg







image9.jpeg

77






image10.jpeg

EST. 1911







image11.jpeg

i EST. 1911






image12.jpeg

747







image13.jpeg







image14.jpeg

£ )
* *
2

’ i EST. 1911







image15.jpeg







image16.jpeg















PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION COMPARED TO POLICY

 Portfolio Composition 
complies to the 
Investment Policy


































































































































































image1.jpeg

erad 6‘2{

§ EST. 1911






image2.jpeg

EST. 1911







image3.jpeg

) Teras Clty

i EST. 1911







image4.jpeg







image5.jpeg

i EST. 1911







image6.jpeg







image7.jpeg







image8.jpeg







image9.jpeg

77






image10.jpeg

EST. 1911







image11.jpeg

i EST. 1911






image12.jpeg

747







image13.jpeg







image14.jpeg

£ )
* *
2

’ i EST. 1911







image15.jpeg







image16.jpeg















INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT


































































































































































image1.jpeg

erad 6‘2{

§ EST. 1911






image2.jpeg

EST. 1911







image3.jpeg

) Teras Clty

i EST. 1911







image4.jpeg







image5.jpeg

i EST. 1911







image6.jpeg







image7.jpeg







image8.jpeg







image9.jpeg

77






image10.jpeg

EST. 1911







image11.jpeg

i EST. 1911






image12.jpeg

747







image13.jpeg







image14.jpeg

£ )
* *
2

’ i EST. 1911







image15.jpeg







image16.jpeg















   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (5) (b)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Submitted By: Renee Edgar, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Emergency Management Report (Emergency Management)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Emergency Management Presentation 



Texas City
Emergency

Management and
Homeland Security

Joe Tumbleson
2024



Primary
Responsibility of

Emergency
Management

• To ensure the safety and
security of the public

•  Industrial/hazmat
incidents

• Weather-related incidents
• Homeland Security
• Any threat to the public

• Organize multi-agency
response

• ICS



Stakeholders

• Citizens (largest stakeholder)
• Local Businesses (public-private

relationships)
• FEMA
• EPA
• TDEM
• TCEQ
• TRRC
• USCG
• DPS
• GCSO
• GCEM
• GCHD
• LEPC
• GLO



Stakeholders

• IMAS
• CTEH
• TNMP
• TxDOT
• CenterPoint
• Port of Texas City
• Army Corp of Engineers
• NWS
• Storm Geo
• TCISD
• Dickinson ISD
• College of the Mainland
• Local Police, Fire, EMS, Public Works,

Parks, IT
• Hospitals



Stakeholders

 United Way
 Red Cross
 Salvation Army
 Food Bank
 Mainland Community Partners
 Gulf Coast Centers
 4B Disaster Response Network
 Gulf Coast Transit District
 Churches
 Industry
 Contractors
 Debris removal contractors
 Monitoring contractors
 Environmental contractors
 News media
 Texas City LaMarque Chamber of

Commerce



Some Significant Events



Marathon SO2 Emissions Event 
December 17th, 2023



Sawtooth Oil Spill 
December 26th, 2023





Sawtooth Oil Spill



Sawtooth Oil Spill





Agencies involved

Agencies involved:
Texas City Office of

Emergency
Management

Texas City Fire
Department

Texas City Police
Department

Texas City
Information
Technology

Texas City
Communications

Texas Department
of Emergency
Management

Texas General Land
Office

Texas Commission
on Environmental

Quality

Environmental
Protection Agency

Texas Railroad
Commission

E3 – Oil Spill
Response
Contractor

Galveston County
Emergency

Management

Water Drainage
District # 2

National Weather
Service

United States
Coast Guard EPA contractors

Texas Parks and
Wildlife

Department

Wildlife Response
Services

National Response
Group CTEH Sawtooth



Other Significant
Events

• Freeze – January 15th, 2024

• Valero Fire – January 25th, 2024

• Valero H2S Overpressured Tank –
February 19th, 2024

• Del Sol Apartment Fire –
February 21st, 2024

• Oil Spill Pelican Island Bridge –
May 15th, 2024

• Flash Flooding – July 26th, 2024

• Hurricane Beryl – July 7th, 2024







Hurricane Beryl

• Hurricane Beryl made landfall near
Matagorda, Texas, around 4 AM CDT on
July 8th with maximum sustained winds of
80 mph 

• Here in Texas City, we recorded 64 mph
sustained winds (radar indicated).

• Beryl created major issues due to damage
to our electrical infrastructure.





When we are
not

responding to
emergencies

Training and
Drills

Hazard
Mitigation Plan

Debris
removal
contacts

Monitoring
contracts

Evacuation
Planning

Hurricane Town
Hall

Maintenance
and exercise

of equipment



Hurricane Town Hall



Hurricane Town Hall



Hurricane Town Hall



Hurricane Town Hall



Thank You
Joe Tumbleson

409.739.4799

jtumbleson@texascitytx.gov

www.texascitytx.gov



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (5) (c)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Utilities Department Letter to Residents and Customers Concerning Water Service Lines
Submitted For: Dj Hutchinson, Public Works  Submitted By: Dj Hutchinson, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
The purpose of this Agenda Item is to notify and explain to the Mayor and City
Commission about the 12,434 Lead Service Line Inventory letters that were mailed to all
commercial and residential City water account holders, beginning last week on November
13th. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
In 2021, the EPA began a federally mandated program to identify and inventory service lines
that are made of lead or galvanized pipe in an effort to make America's drinking water safer
and reduce the risk of possible lead-ingested illness(s). These requirements include an initial
service line inventory and notification to persons served by known or potential lead service
lines.  For more detailed information on the City's plan for identifying and notifying customers
that may have affected services. Please see Exhibit A

RECOMMENDATION
Informative Only.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
EXHIBIT A 
Staff Report 







 
PWS ID: TX0840008                                                                                                              
October 30, 2024 

 

 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR WATER SERVICE LINE 

Dear Resident: 

As a part of City of Texas City’s water service line material inventory, our records indicate that the City has been unable to 

determine the material of your water service line. There is the potential your water service line is made of lead or galvaniz ed 

requiring replacement, as described below:  

Lead Water Service Line – a portion of or the entire service line is made from lead. People living in homes with a lead 

service line may have an increased risk of exposure to lead from their drinking water. 

 

Galvanized Requiring Replacement Water Service Line  - a portion of or the entire service line is made from galvanized 

material and may have absorbed lead from upstream lead lines. People living in homes with a galvanized service line 

that has absorbed lead may have an increased risk of exposure to lead from their drinking water. 

Health effects of Lead 
Exposure to lead can cause serious health effects in all age groups. Infants and children can have decreases in IQ and attent ion 

span. Lead exposure can lead to new learning and behavior problems or exacerbate existing learning and behavior problems. 

The children of women who are exposed to lead before or during pregnancy can have increased risk of these adverse health 

effects. Adults can have increased risks of heart disease, high blood pressure, kidney, or nervous system problems.  

Steps You Can Take to Reduce Your Exposure to Lead in Your Water 
Below are recommended actions that you may take, separately or in combination, if you are concerned about lead in your 

drinking water. The list also includes where you may find more information and is not intended to be a complete list or to imply 

that all actions equally reduce lead from drinking water. 

 

Use your filter properly. Using a filter can reduce lead in drinking water. If you use a filter, it should be certified 
to remove lead. Read any directions provided with the filter to learn how to properly install, maintain, and use 
your cartridge and when to replace it. Using the cartridge after it has expired can make it less effective at removing 
lead. Do not run hot water through the filter. For more information, use the QR codes for EPA’s (QR -1) tool to 

identify certified filters, and (QR-2) fact sheet on home filtration. 
 
 
 

 

 

Clean your aerator. Regularly remove and clean your faucet’s screen (also known as an aerator). Sediment, debris, 
and lead particles can collect in your aerator. If lead particles are caught in the aerator, lead can get into your 

water. 

 

Use cold water. Do not use hot water from the tap for drinking, cooking, or making baby formula as lead dissolves 

more easily into hot water. Boiling water does not remove lead from water. 

 

Run your water. The more time water has been sitting in your home’s pipes, the more lead it may contain. Before 

drinking, flush your home’s pipes by running the tap, taking a shower, doing laundry, or doing a load of dishes. 
The amount of time to run the water will depend on whether your home has a lead service line, the length and 
diameter of the service line and the amount of plumbing in your home.  
 

QR-2 QR-2 



   

 

   

 

Identifying Service Line Materials 

City Identification Program 

City staff will be inspecting the material of 

water service lines throughout the City in the 

coming months. Staff will verify the material of 

a water service line by visually inspecting the 

material of the pipe as it enters and exits the 

meter pit, which typically is located near the 

property line, as shown in the image to the 

right. City staff will need to gain access to the 

water service line by removing the lid to the 

meter pit. Upon completion of the inspection, 

the lid will be placed back onto the meter pit. 

 

How can you help? 

If you know your water service line has been replaced or when it was installed, we invite you to participate in the Water Service 
Line Material Inventory Survey. This survey is designed to gather information about your property’s water service line and he lp 
us determine its material type.  

 
• Complete the survey online 

1. Access the survey by scanning the QR Code to the right with your smart phone or online 

by visiting arcg.is/1biiri.  

2. Follow the prompts to confirm your residence and verify your water service material.  

 
 

If you are unaware of when your service line was installed or if it has ever been replaced, no additional 

action is needed at this time. The City will determine the material of your water service line through their 
identification program.  
 

Lead Service Line Replacement 
If you have replaced, or plan to replace, a section of a lead service line from the meter to your property, we ask you to let  us 

know as soon as you can using the contact information provided below. We are required to replace our section of the service 

line from the meter to the water main. 

For information about potential financing solutions to assist property owners with replacement of lead service lines, please 

contact us. 

Contact Information 

Public Water System (PWS) Contact: Jason Baecker, Utilities Water Superintendent 

Phone Number: 409-359-5505   

Website: texascitytx.gov/353/Public-Works  

 

Sincerely, 

City of Texas City 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (a)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Approve Ordinance 2024-28, amending the City’s existing ordinances pertaining to Texas
Enterprise Zones and nominating a specific Union Carbide Corporation project as an enterprise
project.
Submitted For: Kristin Edwards, Economic Development 
Submitted By: Kristin Edwards, Economic Development
Department: Economic Development

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve Ordinance 2024-28, amending the City’s existing ordinances pertaining to Texas
Enterprise Zones and nominating a specific Union Carbide Corporation project as an
enterprise project.
 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The City of Texas City was approached by a third-party consultant hired by Union Carbide
Corporation, i.e., Dow Chemical, to pursue a Texas Enterprise Zone designation for a $37
million project.
A Texas Enterprise Zone is a State sales and use tax refund program designed to encourage
private investment and job creation in economically distressed areas of the state.  

The City’s role is to provide an updated list of available incentives in the community, which
Dow can reflect in their state-level application, and to nominate the project for enterprise
project status. The City has not committed to, nor is expected to, provide any of the
incentives listed in the attachment to Dow Chemical.  What we will be asking tonight is for the
City Commission’s approval of Ordinance 2024-28, which updates our original ordinance
allowing for Texas Enterprise Zones (2004-42), as well as Ordinance 2013-13 that amended
the initial ordinance.

The changes outlined in Ordinance 2024-28 expand the list of available incentives in Texas
City and recognize that Union Carbide “meets the criteria for tax relief and other incentives …
on the grounds that it will be located at the qualified business site, [and] will create a higher
level of employment, economic activity and stability.”

With the City Commission's approval, Union Carbide Corporation will move forward with their
application to the State of Texas for an enterprise zone designation.
 

RECOMMENDATION
Approve Ordinance 2024-28, amending the City’s existing ordinances pertaining to Texas
Enterprise Zones and nominating a specific Union Carbide Corporation project as an
enterprise project.
 



Fiscal Impact
Funds Available Y/N: Y
Amount Requested: $0
Source of Funds: Economic Development Corporation
Account #: 801-050-53111
Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact associated with the approval of this Ordinance.

Attachments
Ordinance - Texas Enterprise Zone 
Union Carbide - Written request 
Ordinance 



 

Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 13-13, WHICH AMENDED 
ORDINANCE NO. 04-42 RELATING TO THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE 
TEXAS ENTERPRISE ZONE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TEXAS 
ENTERPRISE ZONE ACT, CHAPTER 2303, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE; 
EXPANDING THE LIST OF LOCAL INCENTIVES OFFERED WITHIN THE CITY’S 
JURISDICTION AND NOMINATING UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION TO THE 
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM (EDT) 
THROUGH THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK (BANK) AS AN ENTERPRISE 
PROJECT (PROJECT) PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME 
EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas (City) has previously 
passed Ordinance No. 04-42 and Ordinance No. 13-13, electing to participate in the Texas 
Enterprise Zone Program pursuant to the Texas Enterprise Zone Act (the “Act”) and offering a 
specific listing of local incentives to qualified applicants; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend Ordinance No. 13-13 to expand the list of local 
incentives the City offers to the more comprehensive list of local incentives as summarized on 
attached Exhibit A; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City finds that it is in full compliance with Chapter 2303, Texas 
Government Code prior to nomination of an eligible business; and 
 

WHEREAS, with proper notice to the public, a public hearing to consider this ordinance 
was held on Wednesday, November 20th 2024 during a meeting of the City Commission, in the 
Commission Chambers at City Hall, in the City of Texas City during which all interested persons 
were allowed to appear and be heard; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City finds that Union Carbide Corporation meets the criteria for tax relief 
and other incentives adopted by the City on the grounds that it will be located at the qualified 
business site, will create a higher level of employment, economic activity and stability; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 2303, Subchapter F of the Act, Union Carbide 
Corporation has applied to the City for designation as an enterprise project; and 

 
WHEREAS the project or activity is not located in an area designated as an enterprise 

zone;  
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS THAT:  
 



 

Page 2 of 4 

Section 1. The City finds that Union Carbide Corporation meets the criteria for 
designation as an enterprise project under Chapter 2303, Subchapter F of the Act on the following 
grounds:  
 

A. Union Carbide Corporation is a “qualified business” under Section 2303.402 of the 
Act since it will be engaged in the active conduct of a trade or business at a qualified 
business site within the governing body’s jurisdiction, located outside of an 
enterprise zone and at least thirty-five percent (35%) of the business’ new 
employees will be residents of an enterprise zone, economically disadvantaged 
individuals, or veterans; and 
 

B. There has been and will continue to be a high level of cooperation between public, 
private, and neighborhood entities within the area; and 
 

C. The designation of Union Carbide Corporation as an enterprise project will 
contribute significantly to the achievement of the plans of the City for development 
and revitalization of the area. 

 
 Section 2. The City nominates Union Carbide Corporation for enterprise project status. 
 
 Section 3. The enterprise zone areas within the City are reinvestment zones in 
accordance with the Texas Tax Code, Chapter 312. 
 
 Section 4. That all other provisions of Ordinance No. 04-42 and Ordinance No. 13-13 
shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
 Section 5. The enterprise project shall take effect on the date of designation of the 
enterprise project by EDT and terminate five (5) years after the date of designation. 
 
 Section 6. This ordinance shall be finally passed and adopted on the date of its 
introduction and shall become effective from and after its passage as the law and charter in such 
case provides. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th the day of November 2024. 

 
 

                                                         
       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

City of Texas City, Texas 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                                                     _______________________________  
Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

  Name of Incentive Description of Incentive Availability 

1 

Local Sales Tax 
Refunds 

The City may refund local sales/use 
taxes through Chapter 380 local 

incentive agreements 

Citywide – 
case by Case 

Basis 

2 
Tax Abatement The City may abate property taxes for 

certain projects located in the city. 

Citywide – 
case by Case 

Basis 

3 

Tax Increment 
Financing 

The City may create Tax Increment 
Finance zones to fund infrastructure 

improvement projects. 

Citywide – 
case by Case 

Basis 

4 

Economic Development 
Sales Tax (4A) 
Contribution 

Administered through 4A Economic 
Development Corporation Citywide 

5 
Chapter 380 The City may provide grants and loans to 

promote economic growth 

Citywide – 
case by Case 

Basis 

6 
Foreign Trade Zone 

The City operates a Foreign Trade 
Zone (#199) in accordance with the 

Foreign Trade Zone Act. 

Within FTZ # 
199  

7 

Zoning 
Changes/Variances 

The City may permit zoning changes or 
variances to promote economic 

development. 

Citywide – 
case by Case 

Basis 

8 

Impact/Inspection Fee 
Waivers 

The City may waive impact/ inspection fees to 
promote economic development. 

Citywide – 
case by Case 

Basis 

9 

Streamlined Permitting 
(Including One-Stop 

Permitting) 

The City may accelerate zoning permit 
procedures to provide regulatory relief 
and/or promote economic development. 

Citywide – 
case by Case 

Basis 

10 

Improved Police and/or 
Fire 

Protection 
Protection and safety of City residents Citywide 

11 
Community Crime 

Prevention Programs 
Citizen’s Police Academy, Crime 
Stoppers, Explorer Program, etc. Citywide 

12 
Special Public Transit 
Routes, Fares, Shuttles Enhanced community services Citywide 

13 

Capital Improvements 
Plan for Water and 

Sewer Facilities 
Improvement in public facilities Citywide 



 

Page 4 of 4 

14 Road Repair Improvement in public facilities Citywide 

15 

Creation or 
Improvement of 

Parks 

The City may create or improve public 
parks to promote the health and well being of 

City residents. 
Citywide 

16 

Low-Interest Loans for 
Housing Rehabilitation 

or 
New Construction 

The City administers a Housing 
Rehabilitation Program through its 

Community Development department. 

Citywide – 
Case by Case 

Basis 

17 

Use of Underutilized 
Public Buildings (i.e. 
School Buildings) for 

Economic Development 
Purposes 

The City may use underutilized public 
buildings as incubators or to promote 

economic development. 

Citywide – 
Case by Case 

Basis 

18 

 
Promotion and 

Marketing Service 
Business Services Citywide 

19 

Job Training, 
Retraining Program and 
Employment Services 

Offered in conjunction with the local 
community colleges, Texas City High School, 

and other training providers 
Citywide 

20 

Literacy and 
Employment Skills 

Services 

Offered in conjunction with the local 
community colleges, Texas City High School, 

and other training providers. 
Citywide 

21 

Vocational Education  
and Customized Job 

Training 

Offered in conjunction with the local 
community colleges, Texas City High 
School, and other training providers. 

Citywide  

22 

Other Tax Deferrals, 
Tax Refunds or Tax 

Incentives 

The City may provide grants, loans and 
exemptions to promote economic growth 

Citywide – 
Case by Case 

Basis 
 



���������	
���������������������������������������������������� !�"#$�%$&'#()*&+, !�-.�/0!�+12���3 .45675685897:54�(�� ;�&<=$&>�&*?@=$&>�&-� A$>!B�C�A0D�E1FG=B>�B&H./$=.>*� ./$=.>-� A$>!B�C�A0D�E1IJ �+$=0�%$&-=C$&0!�+*�+$=0�%$&-=C$&0!�+1FK$++$D "L$+'L)*LK$++$D -.�/0!�+1MMNOPNQRSTNUSVTMMWXYZ[\]̂_]Ỳabcd\]_]Ye_XfX\cbggh\ijkî_YXc]Yb_]XY_X_liminb̂oY_i\p\]̂iqXYir\Xe\bcsppg]tb_]XYfX\Xk\p\XpX̂iup\Xvit_]Yminb̂w]_hxyY]XYwb\z]uiwX\pX\b_]XY{|yww}~]̂tXcc]__iu_XiYlbYt]YeXk\Xpi\b_]XŶd]_l]Yminb̂w]_hbYupgbY_X]Y�î_bpp\Xn]cb_igh���c]gg]XY_XtXYukt_�b\]Xk̂pgbY_kpe\buîb]ciub_iYlbYt]Ye_lîk̂_b]Ybz]g]_h]Y]_]b_]�îXf_l]̂fbt]g]_hxacp\X�iciY_̂]Ytgkui_li]Ŷ_bggb_]XYXfbtXXg]Ye_Xdi\uî]eYiu_Xc]Y]c]�ilib_ic]̂̂]XŶbYub�s�_li\cbgXn]u]�i\_lb_ig]c]Yb_îci_lbYieb̂ ̀\iukt]Ye_lipgbY_�̂e\iiYlXk̂ieb̂fXX_p\]Y_xsuu]_]XYbggh̀_lipgbY_pgbŶ_Xkpe\buîbfi_hcib̂k\îzh]Ŷ_bgg]Yebu�bYtiu_bY�X�i\f]gĝiŶX\̂̀bk_Xcb_iupkcp̂iŶX\̂̀bYueb̂ui_it_]XŶĥ_iĉ ̀b̂diggb̂d]_l_li]Ŷ_bggb_]XYXfkpe\buiûcX�ibYuf]\iui_it_X\̂xmXfbt]g]_b_i_libppg]tb_]XYp\Xtî^̀�bcbYualb�ibk_lX\]�iu�hbỲ��w_Xb̂ ]̂̂_d]_l_lip\ipb\b_]XYbYuk̂zc]̂̂]XYXfbggYitî b̂\huXtkciY_b_]XYxmlbY�hXkfX\tXŶ]ui\]YeXk\\ijkî_bYupgib̂igi_k̂�YXd]f_li\ib\ijkî_]XŶx��b_lbYbYu�bc����������������������������������������������������������������� ¡¢£¤¥ ¡¦§̈©ª¥£¦«©¬®̄�°�̄��±²�����³́µ¶���·�̄�̧̧���¹º»¼½¾¿»¼ÀÀÁÂ�Ã��̄¹ÄÅÆÇÈÉÊËÌÍÎÈÌÅÏÐÑÒÓÔÕÑÖÓ×ØÓÖÙÚÖ×ÖÕÛÕÑÖÜÖÝÞßàáàâãäåæÞâçàßßèéàâåæãèÞæßÞæêåäçèãÞåæãÝèãçèëìàâåæêÞíàæãÞèáåäîäÞïÞáàéàíðÖÝàÞæêåäçèãÞåæÞßÞæãàæíàíßåáàáëêåäãÝàñßàåêãÝàÞæíÞïÞíñèáòßóåäàæãÞãëòÞàßóæèçàíèìåïàðÓêëåñèäàæåããÝàÞæãàæíàíäàâÞîÞàæãôìàèõèäàãÝèãèæëíÞßâáåßñäàôâåîëÞæéôíÞßãäÞìñãÞåæôåäñßàåêãÝàâåæãàæãßåêãÝÞßçàßßèéàÞßîäåÝÞìÞãàíð ö÷ø÷ùú������ø÷����	
�����



Page 1 of 4

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-28

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 13-13, WHICH AMENDED
ORDINANCE NO. 04-42 RELATING TO THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE
TEXAS ENTERPRISE ZONE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TEXAS
ENTERPRISE ZONE ACT, CHAPTER 2303, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE;
EXPANDING THE LIST OF LOCAL INCENTIVES OFFERED WITHIN THE CITY’S
JURISDICTION AND NOMINATING UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION TO THE
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM (EDT)
THROUGH THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK (BANK) AS AN ENTERPRISE
PROJECT (PROJECT) PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME
EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas (City) has previously
passed Ordinance No. 04-42 and Ordinance No. 13-13, electing to participate in the Texas
Enterprise Zone Program pursuant to the Texas Enterprise Zone Act (the “Act”) and offering a
specific listing of local incentives to qualified applicants; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend Ordinance No. 13-13 to expand the list of local
incentives the City offers to the more comprehensive list of local incentives as summarized on
attached Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the City finds that it is in full compliance with Chapter 2303, Texas
Government Code prior to nomination of an eligible business; and

WHEREAS, with proper notice to the public, a public hearing to consider this ordinance
was held on Wednesday, November 20th 2024 during a meeting of the City Commission, in the
Commission Chambers at City Hall, in the City of Texas City during which all interested persons
were allowed to appear and be heard; and

WHEREAS, the City finds that Union Carbide Corporation meets the criteria for tax relief
and other incentives adopted by the City on the grounds that it will be located at the qualified
business site, will create a higher level of employment, economic activity and stability; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 2303, Subchapter F of the Act, Union Carbide
Corporation has applied to the City for designation as an enterprise project; and

WHEREAS, the project or activity is not located in an area designated as an enterprise
zone.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1: The City finds that Union Carbide Corporation meets the criteria for
designation as an enterprise project under Chapter 2303, Subchapter F of the Act on the following
grounds:



Page 2 of 4

A. Union Carbide Corporation is a “qualified business” under Section 2303.402 of the
Act since it will be engaged in the active conduct of a trade or business at a qualified
business site within the governing body’s jurisdiction, located outside of an
enterprise zone and at least thirty-five percent (35%) of the business’ new
employees will be residents of an enterprise zone, economically disadvantaged
individuals, or veterans; and

B. There has been and will continue to be a high level of cooperation between public,
private, and neighborhood entities within the area; and

C. The designation of Union Carbide Corporation as an enterprise project will
contribute significantly to the achievement of the plans of the City for development
and revitalization of the area.

SECTION 2. The City nominates Union Carbide Corporation for enterprise project status.

SECTION 3. The enterprise zone areas within the City are reinvestment zones in
accordance with the Texas Tax Code, Chapter 312.

SECTION 4. That all other provisions of Ordinance No. 04-42 and Ordinance No. 13-13
shall continue in full force and effect.

SECTION 5. The enterprise project shall take effect on the date of designation of the
enterprise project by EDT and terminate five (5) years after the date of designation.

SECTION 6. This ordinance shall be finally passed and adopted on the date of its
introduction and shall become effective from and after its passage as the law and charter in such
case provides.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



Page 3 of 4

EXHIBIT A

 Name of Incentive Description of Incentive Availability

1

Local Sales Tax
Refunds

The City may refund local sales/use
taxes through Chapter 380 local

incentive agreements

Citywide –
case by Case

Basis

2
Tax Abatement The City may abate property taxes for

certain projects located in the city.

Citywide –
case by Case

Basis

3

Tax Increment
Financing

The City may create Tax Increment
Finance zones to fund infrastructure

improvement projects.

Citywide –
case by Case

Basis

4

Economic Development
Sales Tax (4A)
Contribution

Administered through 4A Economic
Development Corporation Citywide

5
Chapter 380 The City may provide grants and loans to

promote economic growth

Citywide –
case by Case

Basis

6
Foreign Trade Zone

The City operates a Foreign Trade
Zone (#199) in accordance with the

Foreign Trade Zone Act.

Within FTZ #
199

7

Zoning
Changes/Variances

The City may permit zoning changes or
variances to promote economic

development.

Citywide –
case by Case

Basis

8

Impact/Inspection Fee
Waivers

The City may waive impact/ inspection fees to
promote economic development.

Citywide –
case by Case

Basis

9

Streamlined Permitting
(Including One-Stop

Permitting)

The City may accelerate zoning permit
procedures to provide regulatory relief

and/or promote economic development.

Citywide –
case by Case

Basis

10

Improved Police and/or
Fire

Protection
Protection and safety of City residents Citywide

11
Community Crime

Prevention Programs
Citizen’s Police Academy, Crime
Stoppers, Explorer Program, etc. Citywide

12
Special Public Transit
Routes, Fares, Shuttles Enhanced community services Citywide

13

Capital Improvements
Plan for Water and

Sewer Facilities
Improvement in public facilities Citywide



Page 4 of 4

14 Road Repair Improvement in public facilities Citywide

15

Creation or
Improvement of

Parks

The City may create or improve public
parks to promote the health and well being of

City residents.
Citywide

16

Low-Interest Loans for
Housing Rehabilitation

or
New Construction

The City administers a Housing
Rehabilitation Program through its

Community Development department.

Citywide –
Case by Case

Basis

17

Use of Underutilized
Public Buildings (i.e.
School Buildings) for

Economic Development
Purposes

The City may use underutilized public
buildings as incubators or to promote

economic development.

Citywide –
Case by Case

Basis

18
Promotion and

Marketing Service
Business Services Citywide

19

Job Training,
Retraining Program and
Employment Services

Offered in conjunction with the local
community colleges, Texas City High School,

and other training providers
Citywide

20

Literacy and
Employment Skills

Services

Offered in conjunction with the local
community colleges, Texas City High School,

and other training providers.
Citywide

21

Vocational Education
and Customized Job

Training

Offered in conjunction with the local
community colleges, Texas City High
School, and other training providers.

Citywide

22

Other Tax Deferrals,
Tax Refunds or Tax

Incentives

The City may provide grants, loans and
exemptions to promote economic growth

Citywide –
Case by Case

Basis



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (a)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve City Commission Minutes for the November 6, 2024 meeting. (City Secretary)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Approve City Commission Minutes for the November 6, 2024 meeting. (City Secretary)

RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
11/6/2024 Minutes 



REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

M I N U T E S 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2024 – 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM – CITY HALL

 
A Regular Called Meeting of the City Commission was held on Wednesday, NOVEMBER 6, 2024, at
5:00 P.M. in the Kenneth T. Nunn Council Room in City Hall, Texas City, Texas. A quorum having been
met, the meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson.
 

               
1. ROLL CALL

Present: Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson   
Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie   
Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr.   
Commissioner District 1 DeAndre' Knoxson   
Commissioner District 2 Keith Love   
Commissioner District 3 Chris Sharp   
Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark   

2. INVOCATION

Led by Father Clint Ressler from St. Mary of the Miraculous Medal Catholic Church.
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Commissioner District 1 DeAndre Knoxson.
 
4. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS
 

a. Proclaiming November 4-8, 2024 as Municipal Courts Week.

The Mayor presented the Proclamation to Tammy Odom, Court Administrator, Presiding
Judge Charles Dunkel, and Associate Judges Donnie Quintanilla and Katy Marie Lyles.

 
b. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-142, confirming Mayor Johnson's

appointment of Nicole Miller as the Director of Recreation and Tourism. (Human Resources)

The Mayor and Commission congratulated Nicole Miller on her promotion to Director of
Recreation and Tourism. 

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark, Seconded by Commissioner District 1

DeAndre' Knoxson 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-150, confirming the Mayor's appointment   



c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-150, confirming the Mayor's appointment
of Assistant Fire Chief Dennis Harris to the position of Fire Chief and the swearing in of his
new position. (Human Resources)

The Mayor and Commission congratulated Dennis Harris for his promotion to Fire Chief.
Dennis Harris, Fire Chief, was pinned by Robert Terry.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, Seconded by

Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Promotion of a member of the Texas City Fire Department to the rank of Assistant Fire Chief.

The Mayor and Commission congratulated Matthew Wyatt for his promotion to Assistant
Fire Chief. Matthew Wyatt, Assistant Fire Chief, was pinned by his son.

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS

The following members of the public requested to address the City Commission: La Marque
Council person Joseph Edwin Lowry, Jason Brautigam, Evelyn A. Bell, Barbara White, Brian
Geotschius, Rachel Orelos, Juan D. Rodriguez, Reva Rodriguez, and Raquel Ornelas.
David Almerez filled out a request to address the commission but did not come forward
when their name was called.

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA

Commissioner At-Large, Abel Garza, Jr., made a motion to approve Consent Agenda items
6a, c, d, e, f, g, h, i, j, k, l, m, n, and o. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem, Thelma Bowie. 

 
a. Approve City Commission Minutes for the October 16, 2024 meeting. (City Secretary)   

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-140, the reappointment of Presiding Judge

Charles Dunkel and Associate Judges Donnie Quintanilla and Katy Marie Lyles. (Municipal
Court)

This item was pulled by Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson.

Mayor Johnson swore in the judges present.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark, Seconded by Commissioner At-Large,

Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-141, authorizing the submission of the

attached Ballot in the 2025 Board Election for Galveston Central Appraisal District. (City
Secretary)

  



 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-143, authorizing the replacement of three

air conditioning units in the Moore Memorial Library. (Library)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
e. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-144, authorizing the purchase of a new

2024 Ford Maverick for the Building Inspections Department through HGAC Contract No.
AM10-23. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
f. Consider and take on Resolution No. 2024-145, authorizing the purchase of a new

Hydro-Excavation Truck through HGAC Contract No. HT06-20. (Public Works)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
g. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-146, rejecting all bids received for Bid No.

2024-461 Sheet Pile Replacement Project for Pump Stations A & B. (Public Works)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
h. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-147, authorizing the payment of The City

of Texas City's Texas Commission Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Water System Fee for an
amount not to exceed $65,000.00. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
i. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-148, appointing Angela Moreno to the

Library Board. (City Secretary)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
j. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-149, approving the updated City of Texas

City's Social Media policy. (Communications)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
k. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-151, approving the purchase of a new fuel

system to replace the existing 40-year-old system at Pump Station B. (Public Works)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 



l. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-152, approval regarding the Master Plan
for Marlow Lake North Subdivision. (City Engineer)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
m. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-153, awarding a contract to LAN, Inc. for

the development of the City's Hazard Mitigation Plan. (Grants Administration)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
n. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-154, updating the designated authorized

signatories for contractual and financial documents for GLO state contracts. (Grants
Administration)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
o. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-155, authorizing the purchase of twelve

fleet vehicles for the Police Department from Silsbee Ford through TIPS USA210907.
(Police)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
p. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-156, authorizing the purchase of four

vehicles for Administration from Silesbee Ford through TIPS USA210907. (Finance)

This item was pulled for discussion to let the records reflect that the company changed to
Chastang Ford. This change happened after the Agenda was posted so the correction could
not be made.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark, Seconded by Commissioner District 1

DeAndre' Knoxson 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
7. REGULAR ITEMS
 

a. Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2024-26 for
recommended speed zones for FM 646 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an
engineering and traffic investigation. (City Engineer)

Kim Golden, City Engineer, stated upon review of the engineering and traffic investigation
by an independent professional traffic operations engineer (P.T.O.E.) the City Engineer
recommends approval of the TxDOT recommended speed limits indicated for vehicles
traveling upon the named streets and highways.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr., Seconded by Commissioner District 2

Keith Love 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED



 
b. Consider and take action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 2024-27, amending the Texas

City Code of Ordinance Title III entitled "Administration," Chapter 37, adding Section 16 -
Signatures and seals: electronic, digital, and facsimile. (City Secretary)

Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary, recommends the use and acceptance of electronic, digital, or
facsimile signatures for city transactions, relating to business, commercial, or governmental
affairs, in accordance with the city’s policies.  

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr., Seconded by Commissioner District 4

Jami Clark 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
8. COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS
 
9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS

An audiovisual recording of this meeting is available on the City's website and retained by
the CSO for two years after the date of the adaption of the minutes to which the meeting
corresponds.

 
10. ADJOURNMENT
 
Having no further business, Commissioner At-Large, Abel Garza, Jr. made a MOTION to ADJOURN
at 6:06 p.m.; the motion was SECONDED by Commissioner District 2 Keith Love. All present voted AYE.
MOTION CARRIED.

  
 ______________________________
 DEDRICK D. JOHNSON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Date Approved:



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (b)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
2024 Employee Christmas Gift Cards
Submitted For: Jennifer Price, Human Resources 
Submitted By: Susan Sensat, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approving the purchase of 476 Visa Gift Cards in the amount of $75.00 each to be given to
the City Employees (full-time and part-time), as an incentive for continued outstanding
customer service and performance. (Human Resources)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The total cost for the cards is $35,700, which includes 476 cards at $75.00 each, plus a $1.50
per card activation charge of $714.00.  Shipping cost is unknown. This is an annual item and
is budgeted.  The cards are given prior to Christmas to all full-time and part-time employees
with over a year of service.

RECOMMENDATION
Human Resources recommend approval of the 2024 Christmas gift cards.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-157

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 476 VISA GIFT CARDS
IN THE AMOUNT OF $75.00 EACH, TO BE GIVEN TO CITY EMPLOYEES
(FULL AND PART-TIME), AS AN INCENTIVE FOR CONTINUED
OUTSTANDING CUSTOMER SERVICE AND PERFORMANCE; AND
PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, the City requests approval to purchase 476 Visa Gift Cards in the amount
of $75.00 each, to be given to City Employees (full and part-time), as an incentive for continued
outstanding customer service and performance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of 476 Visa Gift Cards in the amount of $75.00 each, to be given to City
Employees (full and part-time), as an incentive for continued outstanding customer service and
performance.

SECTION 2: The cost for the cards is $35,700.00, which includes 476 cards at $75.00
each, plus a $1.50 per card activation charge and additional shipping fees.

SECTION 3:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

__________________________ 
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

__________________________ __________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (c)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Renewal of CentralSquare software
Submitted For: Clay Pope, Police Department  Submitted By: Clay Pope, Police

Department
Department: Police Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Resolution approving the renewal of the semi-annual Service Agreement for the support and
maintenance of the Public Safety Software package from CentralSquare, for the semi-annual
amount of $51,585.95.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
This is a semi-annual Service Agreement for the support and maintenance of the Public
Safety Software package; the semi-annual amount is $51,585.95.  This agreement will expire
at the end of March shortly after the transition to Motorola One Solutions, which will serve as
the Public Safety Software moving forward.  Funds are budgeted in the Police Department
Equipment Rental budget line.

RECOMMENDATION
The Chief and Command Staff recommend the approval of the expenditure of $51,585.95 to
CentralSquare for the Service Agreement.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Central Square Renewal 
Resolution 











RESOLUTION NO. 2024-158

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RENEWAL OF THE SEMI-ANNUAL
SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR THE SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE OF
THE PUBLIC SAFETY SOFTWARE PACKAGE FROM
CENTRALSQUARE; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION
SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND
ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, this is a semi-annual Service Agreement for the support and maintenance of
the Public Safety Software package in the amount is $51,585.95; and

WHEREAS, this agreement will expire at the end of March shortly after the transition to
Motorola One Solutions, which will serve as the Public Safety Software moving forward. Funds
are available in the Police Department’s portion of the City’s adopted 2024/2025 Fiscal Year
budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby approves
the semi-annual Service Agreement for the support and maintenance of the Public Safety Software
package in the amount of $51,585.95, as set out in the contract attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and
made a part hereof for all intents and purposes.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (d)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Police Department Renovations
Submitted For: Melissa Schanzer, Police Department 
Submitted By: Melissa Schanzer, Police Department
Department: Police Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider a purchase from Generosity Services Inc (Choice Partners Contract #23/016MR-17)
for replacement of the Texas City Police Department's hallway tile and wall covering in the
amount of $53,499.60 and the carpet throughout the Police Department in the amount of
$108,383.38 to be paid out of Police Department's Land and Building Improvements fund. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The Texas City Police Department is in need of several renovations to improve the look of the
building, especially in high traffic areas. Many items listed for the renovations were part of
the original building design that needed to be updated. These renovations will improve the
appearance of the structure as a whole. 

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that these items be approved to improve the appearance and the useability
of the Texas City Police Department. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Hallway Wall Tile and Wall Covering proposal 
Carpet Replacement proposal 
Resolution 





















RESOLUTION NO. 2024-159

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SERVICES FROM GENEROSITY
SERVICES INC (CHOICE PARTNERS CONTRACT #23/016MR-17) FOR
REPLACEMENT OF THE TEXAS CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT'S
HALLWAY TILE, WALL COVERING, AND CARPET; AND PROVIDING
THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER
ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, the Texas City Police Department is in need of several renovations to
improve the look of the building, especially in high-traffic areas; and

WHEREAS, many items listed for the renovations were part of the original building
design that need to be updated. These renovations will improve the appearance of the structure as
a whole. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City hereby authorizes
services from Generosity Services Inc. (Choice Partners Contract #23/016MR-17) for replacement
of the Texas City Police Department's hallway tile, wall covering, and carpet in the amount set out
in the proposals attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________ _______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (e)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Furniture purchase
Submitted For: Clay Pope, Police Department  Submitted By: Clay Pope, Police

Department
Department: Police Department

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on a resolution approving the purchase of new furniture for the
police department.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Most of the furniture in the police department is original to the building (1998) and in need of
replacement.  The funds for the purchase of this furniture have been budgeted for and are
available in the FY2025 budget, Capital Equipment Replacement (Land & Building
Improvements).  The total for the purchase is $68,454.53, via PCA Contract #OD-389-23 from
Office Furniture Connection.

RECOMMENDATION
The Chief and Command Staff recommend this purchase.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Office Furniture Connection Quote 
Resolution 









RESOLUTION NO. 2024-160

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TEXAS CITY POLICE
DEPARTMENT TO PURCHASE FURNITURE FROM OFFICE
FURNITURE CONNECTION; AND PROVIDING THIS RESOLUTION
SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND
ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, the majority of the furniture in the police department is original to the
building (1998) and in need of replacement; and

WHEREAS, the funds for the purchase of the furniture have been budgeted for and
available in the Fiscal Year 2025 budget, Capital Equipment Replacement (Land & Building
Improvements); and

WHEREAS, the total for the purchase is $68,454.53, via PCA Contract #OD-389-23 from
Office Furniture Connection.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City hereby authorizes the
Texas City Police Department to purchase furniture from Office Furniture Connection, as set out
in the quote attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________ _______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (f)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Purchase Greensmaster 3250-D for Bayou Golf Course 
Submitted For: Nicole Best, Recreation and Tourism 
Submitted By: Nancy Heredia, Recreation and Tourism
Department: Bayou Golf Course

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approval is requested for the purchase of one Toro Greenmaster 3250-D Tee Mower for the
Bayou Golf Course. This acquisition will replace the existing 2013 Toro 3150-Q, which has
been in service for 11 years. This will be purchased using a Buy Board Contract No. 706-23:

Toro Greenmaster 3250-D for the amount of $52,666.59

Funds for the mower are budgeted in Account No. 602-403-5520
 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The Bayou Golf Course is seeking approval to purchase a new tee mower specifically for
maintaining the course’s tees, which span approximately 3.5 acres. This mower will be used
at least three times a week to ensure the tees are kept in optimal condition. This will replace
the aging 2013 Toro mower with the new Toro Greenmaster 3250-D.  The existing mower will
be retained as a backup, providing additional reliability and ensuring continuous,
uninterrupted maintenance operations.

 

RECOMMENDATION
The Parks, Recreation & Tourism Department recommends that the Mayor and City
Commission approve this purchase to support Bayou Golf Course’s maintenance needs
effectively.

 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Greensmaster 3250-D 
Resolution 

























RESOLUTION NO. 2024-161

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF ONE TORO
GREENMASTER 3250-D TEE MOWER FOR THE BAYOU GOLF
COURSE THROUGH BUY BOARD CONTRACT 706-23; AND
PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 budget for the purchase of
Toro Greenmaster 3250-D Tee mower through Buy Board Contract 706-23 for the total
price of $52,666.59; and

WHEREAS, the Toro Greenmaster 3250-D Tee mower will be utilized by the Bayou
Golf Course.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the purchase of a Toro Greenmaster 3250-D Tee mower through Buy Board Contract
706-23 for the total price of $52,666.59, as set out on the pricing summary worksheet attached
hereto as Exhibit “A”.

SECTION 2: That this Toro Greenmaster 3250-D Tee mower will be utilized by the
Bayou Golf Course.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



----------------------------------------------------------------------------------
L:Resolution No. 06-132-Approve Purchase Pickup & Cab Truck
2



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (10) (a)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Consider and take action on the third reading of Ordinance No. 2024-26 for recommended speed
zones for FM 646 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic
investigation.
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the third reading of Ordinance No. 2024-26 for recommended
speed zones for FM 646 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and
traffic investigation.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
On the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation, TxDOT recommends the following
speed limits be fixed by ordinance for vehicles traveling on the named streets and highways,
towit:

Along FM 646 from the west City limit of the City of Texas City to the east City limit of the City
of Texas City, a distance of approximately 1.294 miles, the speed limit shall be 50 mph.  

RECOMMENDATION
Upon review of the engineering and traffic investigation by an independent professional traffic
operations engineer (P.T.O.E.) the City Engineer recommends approval of the TxDOT
recommended speed limits indicated for vehicles traveling upon the named streets and
highways.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
FM 646 Speed Concurrence Letter 















   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (10) (b)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Chapter 37, Section 16 - Signatures and seals: electronic, digital, and facsimile.
Submitted For: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary 
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Authorize the use and acceptance of electronic, digital, or facsimile signatures for city
transactions, relating to business, commercial, or governmental affairs, in accordance with the
city’s policies. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Except for Resolutions, Ordinances, Minutes and some contracts, which will still require wet
signatures, E-signatures offer convenience, efficiency, and environmental benefits such as
reducing paper in circulation. They are also helpful in conducting City business in
emergencies. Currently, staff members and contractors use e-signatures through Docu-Sign
and PDF Signature, but the City has not legally recognized that as a way to transact business.
The addition to the Texas City Code of Ordinance will read as follows:

Signatures and seals: electronic, digital, and facsimile.
(a) Signatures.
(1) Authorization.
The City Commission authorizes the use and acceptance of electronic, digital, or facsimile
signatures for city transactions, relating to business, commercial, or governmental affairs, in
accordance with the city’s policy, and state, federal, or other law, as may be amended.
(b) Seals.
(1) Notary public seal of office and other professional seals.
The City Commission authorizes the use and acceptance of an electronic, digital, or facsimile
notary public seal of office (“notary seal”), and other professional seals for city electronic
transactions, relating to business, commercial, or governmental affairs, in accordance with the
city’s rules and state law, as may be amended.
(2) City corporate seal.
The City Commission authorizes the use of an electronic, digital, or facsimile corporate seal
(“city seal”) by the city secretary or his/her designee for electronic transactions, relating to
business, commercial, or governmental affairs, in accordance with the city charter, the city’s
policies, and state law, as may be amended.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the use and acceptance of electronic, digital, or facsimile signatures for city
transactions, relating to business, commercial, or governmental affairs, in accordance with the
city’s policies.  

Fiscal Impact



Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-27

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXAS CITY CODE OF ORDINANCE
TITLE III ENTITLED "ADMINISTRATION," CHAPTER 37, ADDING
SECTION 16 - SIGNATURES AND SEALS: ELECTRONIC, DIGITAL, AND
FACSIMILE; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL
BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS FINAL PASSAGE AND
ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, except for Resolutions, Ordinances, Minutes and some contracts, which
will still require wet signatures, E-signatures offer convenience, efficiency, and environmental
benefits such as reducing paper in circulation.; and

WHEREAS, they are also helpful in conducting City business in emergencies. Currently,
staff members and contractors use e-signatures through Docu-Sign and PDF Signature, but the
City has not legally recognized that as a way to transact business; and

WHEREAS, the addition to the Texas City Code of Ordinance will read as follows:

Signatures and seals: electronic, digital, and facsimile.
(a) Signatures.
(1) Authorization.
The City Commission authorizes the use and acceptance of electronic, digital, or

facsimile signatures for city transactions relating to business, commercial, or governmental
affairs in accordance with the city’s policy and state, federal, or other law, as may be amended.

(b) Seals.
(1) Notary public seal of office and other professional seals.
The City Commission authorizes the use and acceptance of an electronic, digital, or

facsimile notary public seal of office (“notary seal”) and other professional seals for city
electronic transactions relating to business, commercial, or governmental affairs in accordance
with the city’s rules and state law, as may be amended.

(2) City corporate seal.
The City Commission authorizes the use of an electronic, digital, or facsimile corporate

seal (“city seal”) by the city secretary or his/her designee for electronic transactions relating to
business, commercial, or governmental affairs, in accordance with the city charter, the city’s
policies, and state law, as may be amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are
hereby found to be true and correct.

SECTION 2: That the chief executive officer shall file or cause to be filed a copy of this
budget amendment in the office of the Galveston County Clerk.

SECTION 3: That this Ordinance shall be passed and adopted on the date of its final
third reading and passage and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption.



PASSED ON FIRST READING this 6th day of November 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_______________________ _______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney

PASSED ON SECOND READING this 20th day of November 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_______________________ _______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney

PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this 4th day of December 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_____________________ ______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson



City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (10) (c)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Rooftop AC Unit Replacement at Carver and Sanders-Vincent Centers
Submitted For: Dj Hutchinson, Public Works  Submitted By: Dj Hutchinson, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
The Parks and Recreation Department is seeking Comission approval for the removal and
replacement of three existing roof-top A/C units at both the Sanders-Vincent and Carver
Centers by Gowan Mechanical Inc. for the amount of $392,000.00 utilizing Choice Partners
Contract 22/049MF-10. Paid through Account No. 602-401-55010.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The existing units at Sanders-Vincent and Carver Centers are the original units from when the
facilities were built.  They have reached their useful life-span and are requiring frequent costly
repairs and higher operating costs due to their age.  The newer units will provide a more
reliable and comfortable environment plus the added benefit of lower energy costs.  For more
details and specifications of the new systems, please see Exhibit A.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department speaking on behalf of the Parks
Department, that the Mayor and City Commission approve the replacement of these six units
by Gowan Mechanical.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
EXHIBIT A 
Resolution 







RESOLUTION NO. 2024-162

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT
OF THREE EXISTING ROOF-TOP A/C UNITS AT BOTH THE SANDERS-
VINCENT AND CARVER CENTERS BY GOWAN MECHANICAL INC.
THROUGH CHOICE PARTNERS CONTRACT 22/049MF-10; AND
PROVIDING THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, the existing AC units at Sanders-Vincent and Carver Centers are the original
units when the facilities were built; and

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department is seeking Commission approval for
the removal and replacement of three existing roof-top A/C units at both the Sanders-Vincent and
Carver Centers by Gowan Mechanical Inc. for the amount of $392,000.00 utilizing Choice
Partners Contract 22/049MF-10. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City hereby accepts the bid
from Gowan Mechanical Inc. for the amount of $392,000.00 utilizing Choice Partners
Contract 22/049MF-10, as set out in the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part
hereof for all intents and purposes.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________ _______________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (10) (d)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Engineering Services For The City of Texas City Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 22
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve and execute an engineering agreement with ARKK Engineer, LLC., from Houston,
Texas, for the Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 22.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
ARKK Engineers, LLC.has submitted an Agreement for Services for the engineering services
for the Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 22, totaling $211,175.00. This project is in the
2024-2025 Budget (account # 501705-55690). A copy of the agreement is attached for your
review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to approve a resolution authorizing
the Mayor to execute an Agreement for Services with ARKK Engineers, LLC.for the Water
Line Replacement Project - Phase 22 for the engineering services from the design phase
through all construction phases. 

Thank you.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 



























RESOLUTION NO. 2024-163

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
WITH ARKK ENGINEERS, LLC. FOR THE WATER LINE
REPLACEMENT PROJECT - PHASE 22 FOR ENGINEERING
SERVICES; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL
BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND
ADOPTION.
 
WHEREAS, ARKK Engineers, LLC. has submitted an Agreement for Services for the

Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 22, for the total sum of $211,175.00. This includes the
design phase, bid phase, construction administration services, construction materials testing,
construction observation, and construction evaluation services; and

WHEREAS, funds for this project are made available in the 2024/2025 Fiscal Year
Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby accepts
the agreement for Services for the Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 22 from ARKK
Engineers, LLC.

SECTION 2: That the Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with
ARKK Engineers, LLC. for the price in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof for
all intents and purposes and authorizing the Mayor to approve change orders, not to exceed 25%
of the total contract price, without taking the matter before the City Commission.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

____________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas



2

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________ _________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary  City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (10) (e)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Engineering Services For The City Of Texas City Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project -
Phase 24
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve the execution of an Engineering Service Agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC.,
from Houston, Texas, for the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 24.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
ARKK Engineers, LLC.has submitted an Agreement for Services for the Sanitary Sewer
Rehabilitation Project - Phase 24, for the total sum of $229,540.00. This includes design
phase, bid phase, construction administration services, construction materials testing,
construction observation, and construction evaluation services.

Funds for this project are made available in the 2024 / 2025 City of Texas City Budget
(account # 501702-55680). A copy of this agreement is attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to approve a resolution authorizing
the Mayor to execute the Agreement for Services with ARKK Engineers, LLC.on behalf of the
City Commission, for the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 24. 

Thank you.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 





























   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (10) (f)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Approval of Contractor for Lago Mar 24" Force Main Phase2 and Lago Mar East 16" Force
Main Phase 2B
Submitted For: Dj Hutchinson, Public Works  Submitted By: Dj Hutchinson, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
The Public Works Department is seeking approval for entering into a contract with Blaze
Construction Services, LLC for the aforementioned Lago Mar Sewer Line Project. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Eleven bids were received for this project on November 6, 2024.  Blazey Construction, LLC
was the low bid in the amount of $5,327,471.00.  This project will be funded through Account
No.256702-55680-25603 and is necessary for increased capacity of the sewer system to
keep up with the continued growth of new homes and business in the Lago Mar area.  See
(Exhibit A) for bid tabulation and Quiddity Engineering's recommendation.

 

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department and Quiddity Engineering that the
Mayor and City Commission approve entering into a contract with Blazey Construction,
LLC for this project.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
EXHIBIT A 
Resolution 









RESOLUTION NO. 2024-165

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH BLAZE
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC FOR THE LAGO MAR 24" FORCE
MAIN PHASE 2 AND LAGO MAR EAST 16" FORCE MAIN PHASE 2B
PROJECT; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL
BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND
ADOPTION.
 
WHEREAS, eleven bids were received for this project on November 6, 2024.  Blazey

Construction, LLC was the lowest bid in the amount of $5,327,471.00; and

WHEREAS, this project will be funded through the adopted 2024/2025 Fiscal Year
budget and is necessary for the increased capacity of the sewer system to keep up with
the continued growth of new homes and businesses in the Lago Mar area.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby accepts
the agreement from Blaze Construction Services, LLC for the Lago Mar 24" Force Main Phase 2
and Lago Mar East 16" Force Main Phase 2B project.

SECTION 2: That the Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with Blaze
Construction Services, LLC for the price shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part
hereof for all intents and purposes and authorizing the Mayor to approve change orders, not to
exceed 25% of the total contract price, without taking the matter before the City Commission.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

____________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor
City of Texas City, Texas



2

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________ _________________________
Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary  City Attorney



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (10) (g)        
Meeting Date: 11/20/2024  
Bid # 2025-466 Sheet Pile Replacement Project at Pump Stations A and B
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve and award a contract for bid no. 2025-466 Sheet Pile Replacement Project at Pump
Stations A & B to Carlson McClain Construction Company, LLC., of Woodlands, Texas.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Bid # 2025-466 Sheet Pile Replacement Project At Pump Stations A & B was advertised in
the local area newspaper on October 17, 2024 and October 24, 2024. Bid packets were made
available via CIVCASTUSA. Bids were received and opened on November 7, 2024, at 11:00
a.m. local time. The lowest responsible bid came from Carlson McClain Construction
Company, LLC., of Woodlands, Texas, for the total bid amount of $1,768,500.00. This project
will be financed with assistance from the GLO under the  U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development CDBG - MIT program, contract no. 22-085-017-D253.

Verified account numbers on the 2024/2025 annual budget are:
242303-55350-24201 for Station A
242303-55350-24202 for Station B

A letter of recommendation with bid tabulation is attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to award bid no. 2025-466 Sheet
Pile Replacement Project at Pump Stations A & B, to Carlson McClain Construction
Company, LLC., of Woodlands, Texas, for the total bid amount of $1,768,500.00, and that the
Mayor be authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the City Commission. 

Thank you.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 











RESOLUTION NO. 2024-166

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CONTRACT FOR BID NO. 2025-466
SHEET PILE REPLACEMENT PROJECT AT PUMP STATIONS A & B;
AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME
EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.

WHEREAS, Bid No. 2025-466 Sheet Pile Replacement Project At Pump Stations A & B
was advertised in the local area newspaper on October 17, 2024, and October 24, 2024. Bid
packets were made available via CIVCASTUSA.  Bids were received and opened on November
7, 2024, at 11:00 a.m. local time; and

WHEREAS, the lowest responsible bid came from Carlson McClain Construction
Company, LLC., of Woodlands, Texas, for the total bid amount of $1,768,500.00. This project
will be financed with assistance from the GLO under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development CDBG - MIT program, contract no. 22-085-017-D253.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby
approves the bid from Carlson McClain Construction Company, LLC., of Woodlands, Texas, for
the total bid amount of $1,768,500.00, as set out in the bid tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit
“A”

SECTION 2: That the Mayor is authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the City
Commission. 

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November 2024.

_______________________________
Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________ ____________________________



----------------------------------------------------------------------------------
L:Resolution No. 06-132-Approve Purchase Pickup & Cab Truck
2

Rhomari D. Leigh Kyle L. Dickson
City Secretary City Attorney


	Agenda
	AI 7486 November 2024 Service Awards
	AI 75307530
	       ATT_Staff Report
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6

	AI 75317531
	       ATT_Emergency Management Presentation
	AI 7524 Utilities Department Letter to Residents and Customers Concerning Water Service Lines
	       ATT_EXHIBIT A
	       ATT_Staff Report
	AI 7521 Approve Ordinance 2024-28, amending the City’s existing ordinances pertaining to Texas Enterprise Zones and nominating a specific Union Carbide Corporation project as an enterprise project.
	       ATT_Ordinance - Texas Enterprise Zone
	       ATT_Union Carbide - Written request
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 75277527
	       ATT_11_6_2024 Minutes
	AI 7513 2024 Employee Christmas Gift Cards
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7502 Renewal of CentralSquare software
	       ATT_Central Square Renewal
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7508 Police Department Renovations
	       ATT_ Hallway Wall Tile and Wall Covering proposal
	       ATT_Carpet Replacement proposal
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7509 Furniture purchase
	       ATT_Office Furniture Connection Quote
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7519 Purchase Greensmaster 3250-D for Bayou Golf Course 
	       ATT_Greensmaster 3250-D
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7459 Consider and take action on the third reading of Ordinance No. 2024-26 for recommended speed zones for FM 646 as recommended by TxDOT on the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation.
	       ATT_FM 646 Speed Concurrence Letter
	AI 7507 Chapter 37, Section 16 - Signatures and seals: electronic, digital, and facsimile.
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 7514 Rooftop AC Unit Replacement at Carver and Sanders-Vincent Centers
	       ATT_EXHIBIT A
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7511 Engineering Services For The City of Texas City Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 22
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7512 Engineering Services For The City Of Texas City Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 24
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI 7523 Approval of Contractor for Lago Mar 24" Force Main Phase2 and Lago Mar East 16" Force Main Phase 2B
	       ATT_EXHIBIT A
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7520 Bid # 2025-466 Sheet Pile Replacement Project at Pump Stations A and B
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution

